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 Independent Auditor’s Report 
 To the Members of HT Mobile Solutions Limited 

 Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of HT Mobile Solutions Limited (the “Company”) which comprise 
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
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b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the 
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014. 

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith 
are as stated in the 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2B(f) below 
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure B”. 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial 
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements. 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the Note 34(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the Note 34(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting 
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software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility except that the audit trail was not enabled at the database level for accounting software to 
log any direct data changes. 

For accounting software for which audit trail feature is enabled, the audit trail facility has been 
operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and we did 
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our 
audit. 

 

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not 
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon 
by us. 

 For B S R and Associates 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm’s Registration No.:128901W 

  

  

  

 David Jones 

 Partner 

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 098113 

Date: 08 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24098113BKFLXJ4326 
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(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not hold any 
intangible assets during the year ended 31 March 2024. Therefore provisions of paragraph 
3(i)(a)(B) of the Order are not applicable to Company. 

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification 
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in 
a phased manner over a period of 3 years.  In accordance with this programme, certain property, 
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets.  No discrepancy was noticed on such verification. 

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where 
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property 
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The Company is a service company, primarily rendering mobile marketing, social media 
marketing and advertising services.  Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. 
Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits 
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or 
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, provisions of 
clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. The Company has 
made investments in other parties during the year. The Company has not made any investments 
in firms, company and limited liability partnership. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any 
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of 
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from 
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not 
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services 
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provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and 
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been 
subsumed into GST. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident 
Fund, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company 
with the appropriate authorities. 
 
As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs and 
Employees State Insurance. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service 
Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 
2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Service Tax, Income-Tax which have 
not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows: 

 

Name of the 
statute 

Nature of 
the dues 

Amount (Rs. 
in lakhs) 

Period 
to 

which 
the 

amount 
relates 

Forum 
where 

dispute 
is 

pending 

Paid 
under 

protest 
(in 

lakhs) 

Remark
s 

Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

Income tax 45 AY 
2013-14 

Income 
Tax 
Appellat
e 
Tribunal 

9 Non 
deducti
on of 
TDS 

Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

Income tax 46 AY 
2014-15 

Income 
Tax 
Appellat
e 
Tribunal 

9 Non 
deducti
on of 
TDS 

Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

Income tax 23 AY 
2013-14 

Income 
Tax 
Appellat
e 
Tribunal 

- Penalty 
u/s 
271C 

Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

Income tax 23 AY 
2014-15 

Income 
Tax 
Appellat
e 
Tribunal 

- Penalty 
u/s 
271C 
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Name of the 
statute 

Nature of 
the dues 

Amount (Rs. 
in lakhs) 

Period 
to 

which 
the 

amount 
relates 

Forum 
where 

dispute 
is 

pending 

Paid 
under 

protest 
(in 

lakhs) 

Remark
s 

Finance Act, 
1994 

Service tax 55.69 FY 
2017-18 

Assissta
nt 
Commis
sioner 
(A) 

5.1 Cenvat
Credit of 
Service 
tax 

 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, 
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the repayment of borrowings or payment of interest thereon to 
any Lendor was not due during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or government authority. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company 
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been 
used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as 
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not 
applicable. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the 
company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate company (as defined under 
the Act). Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of 
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 
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(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions 
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, 
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements 
as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, 
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period 
under audit. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors 
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us by the management of the 
Company, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016) does not have more than one CIC (which is not required to be registered with 
Reserve Bank of India as not being Systemically Important CIC) as detailed in Note 34(viii) of 
the financial statements. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information 
provided by the management is accurate and complete. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes 
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the 
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Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

 

 For B S R and Associates 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm’s Registration No.:128901W 

  

  

  

 David Jones 

 Partner 

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 098113 

Date: 08 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24098113BKFLXJ4326 

 

 

 

 



B S R and Associates 

 

 Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements 
of HT Mobile Solutions Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 
 Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

 (Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report of even date) 

Page 10 of 11 
 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of HT Mobile 
Solutions Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). 

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 
  
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
 For B S R and Associates 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm’s Registration No.:128901W 

  

  

  

 David Jones 

 Partner 

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 098113 

Date: 08 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24098113BKFLXJ4326 

 

 



HT Mobll. solutlons Llmlt.d
Brlancc Sheet a3 at ltla.ch 3!, 2024

ParticularE As at ar at
uarch 31, 202/t lrlarch 31, 2023

Il{R Lakhs IIIR lakht

ASSETS
l{on-curent assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) lntanqible assets

(i) Investments
(d) Derered tax assets (net)
(e) Non-current tax ass€ts (net)

3

39

10

5A

5

6

102

2

Tot.l Non- curr€nt as5eis t97
2) currcnt asaeE

(a) Flnancial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii)Cash and cash equivalenls
(lv) Bank balances other lhan (iii) above
(v) Other flnancial assefs

(b) Other current assets

5A

7B

7C
5B

392
549

35

17

317

709

l1
7,O-72,,7O9

Tot.l cur.ent a5s€t5 2t702 2,t25
TOTAL AsSETs 2,4L3 2t322

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) Equlty

(a) Equity share capiral

{b) Other equity
9

10

5,042
(4,006)

5,042
(4,342)

Totalequitv 1,036 7.,.,

) Liablllties
tlon-curr€nt llabilitlca
(a) Frnancral llab.lilies

(i) Eorrowings lt
(b) Provisrons 13

225 742
5

Tot.l non-current ll.bilitic3 229
currcnt liablllti.s
Ia) Financial liabilities

( ) Trade payables

a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterpnses

and smallenterpdses*
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than

mic.o enterprises and small enterpnses
(iii) other rinancial liabilities

(b) Other c!rent liabillties

L2A

12A

t2B

13

937
6

I

836
30

8

1

Tot.l current llabilltl.s
Totalllabiliri.s
TOTAL EOUITY AND LIAAILITIES

1,544
L,777
2,413

a7s
Lt622
2,322

Sumtnary of materi.l accounting policie6

see accorflpany ng notes to the financ al statements

As per our report of even date attached

ForASRandAssocl.tes
chaftered Accountants

IIC.AI F,rm egistratron N!mber: 128901W)

(DlNr 08711910)
f4embershrp No.0981rl

chief Financial officer

f
0r
I



XT llobile Solutions Umited

Statcment ot Profit and to!. for th€ y€lr end.d l,l.rch 31, 2024

Year ended
Not.r ilarch 3t, ZO24 M.rch 31,202l

a) Revenue from oPerations 76 4.236 4,776

t7 50 72

4,2A6 +7Ag

Il Expenses
a) cost of servlces rendered (Nlusic content)

b) Employee benehts expense

d) Depreciation and amorti2atron expense

e) Other expenses

Tot l erpentes
Itt P.oflt b€forc exc.Ptional it€hs and tax (I-II)
Iv Ercoptlon.l itemt
v Protlt befor. t r (ttr-Iv)
VI Earnlngs belore Interest, t.r, depr.ciatlon and amottizatlon (EB!rDA)

tv+u(c)+u(d)l
VII rax exPcn.er

(1) Dererred Lax charge
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlie. vears - Oeferred tax charge

Total itx <harge
vul Profit/(Lors) fot th€ year (v'vu)

Ix Oth€r ComPrehensiv€ Incoms
Items that will not to be r€classitied subsequentlv to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of the denned benefit Plansr
lncone tat relabng io items ihat wrll not be reclassifred to prorit or lossi

othe. compteh€nsive In.ome tot the ve.t, net oft.x

X rotal cohprehenslve Income/(lot3) fot th€ vcat, net of ttx (vUI+lX)

xr Eamlngs/(Lois) Pe. equitv.ha'c (basic and dllured) (rNR)

Sumhary of mat.rial 6ccounting policics

r INR less than 50,ooo/- has be€n rounded off to Nil

see accompanying notes to the fnancial staternents

Date: Mav oa, 2024

104 r42
3,9Oa 1t324

3ta 464

37a 464

453 s4i

1E

19

20

2l

70

75

3,989
115

77

1

14

28

9t7

42 92

336 l4s7

2

(r

23

2

on behalf of the Aoard of Directors of

(orN.08711910)

Chief Frnancial Offrc€r

Date: Mav OE, 2024



HT l,lobile Solutions Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulals Year ended
Mar 31, 2024

INR Lakhs

Year ended
Mar 31. 2023

INR LaKhs

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax from oDerations
Adjustmenb for
Deoreciation and amortisation exoense'
Net loss on sale of property, plant and equipments
Profit on sale of Investment properties
(Gain)/Loss on account of fair value of investments classified at FVTPL

InteresvFinance income from investments and others

Unclaimed balances/liabilities written back (net)
lnterest Expense
(Reversal of impairment)/ Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables
ano aovances
Forfeiture of securiW deposits
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in following
assets and liabilities
Changes in openting asseF and liabilities
Decrease/(lncrease) in trade and other receivables

Decrease/(Increase) In current and non-current financial assets and

other current and non_current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in current and non-current financial Iiabllities and

of Investments in mutual funds and others
from sale of investments in mutual funds and others

374

1

(2)

(24)
(6)

75
(18)

40.4

(214)
(626)

89

(347)
I

1

(1)
t1

( 11)
(34)
77
20

(40)
447

196
302

(2s2)

?33
69

1

43

2

(1,8 5 s)
1,503

nance income from investments and others

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities
from borrowings

of borrowings

Net cash flows used in financing activities (C )
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equrvalents (D= A+B+C)

cash and cash equivalents at the begrnning of the year (G )
and cash eduivalents at vear end (D+E+F+G)

to2
709

pao

35

* INR tess than 50,000/- has been rounded off to Nil.



HT l'lobile Solutlons Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Year cnded
ndr 31, 2.'24

INR Lakhs

Year ended
}|ar 31, 2023

tNR Lakhs
he year

Clsh and cheques on hand

Balances r.vith banks
- on current accounts
- deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Total Gash and cash equivalentt
Cash and cash equivalents as 9er caoh Flow Statement

35 34
675

709
709

35
35

\ote : R€fer note 11 for debt reconcaliatlon olsclosure.

5ee accompanying notes to the flnancial statements.

In terms of our report of even date atta€hed

Fo.BSRandAssociate6
chartered accountants
(Firm Reglstration Number: 12890lW)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
HT Solutions Limited

Partner
Membership No.098113

Sandeep Rao
Director
(DIN:08711910)

Chief Financial Officer

1",u"., uu.un..-
lDater MaY 08, 2024

Place! New Delhl
Date: May 08' 2024

ilanhar Kapool
Com pa ny_jiecreta ry



statarnant .t chr|g.a In aqatty to. th. YG|' dd.d lLtdr tf, 2ol'a

Equltv g|... G.tn l (R.t- Ilot 9)

Equtty Sh.res ot ns. tO c.dr lssued, subsc.ibed and fully pald lD

olang€ durtng t,ta y.a;
. B.lancc ra !t tllrth 31, zo23
''irringc d;i'ig the ye.r
ad.rc. - rt x-th tl' tota

B. Oth.r lquitt (td.t X& lO)

t lanc. .c .t AFll 1, 2022
LosE for tfi€ yeaa

Items ot othea comprehengvc ln@ma ruGognl3€d dlrudy In rutlined abmlngs

- Rarncasuremcnts of dellned b€nefE obllgEtion, n€t of tar
Llrnca ae .t lt|rdr 31, 2023
Pront for the yeff
Iterns of other GdnFehenshrc incomc Ecognlsrd dlr€(fy In retalnerl alnlngF

- Rqne*s!.emcnts of defrned b€n€fit' oulgadon, n€t of tu'
E l.nc..s !t ll|rch 91,2O2a
* INR |.; $.n f,o,oot: tras ue; rdunocd on to Nll.

S€c accotDanylng notes to t re finandal sbternants

As pcr oul report of even dde €ttached

Fo.BSn.ndaa-.Lt-
Cl?dtt',ed k@untaats
(ICAI Flrm reglsF.tlon Numbc.: 12890lW)

Paftref
ttembcrshlp No. 098113

(4,0O6)

on b.h.f of tt|. Eoerd of DNreclo6 of
L goludoda U|nltcd

(DIN:0a711910),V
lhnh.? lopoo.
cotnpeny Secretary

Chlef Financi.l Omcer

Placa: G|rriltlr|tr
Drtr! Hry 08' 2O2a

Plac.: llcs Ddhi
O.te! Xry Oa, 2o2a

For



HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the ended March 31

1 corporate information

HT Mobile solutions Limited ("The company") is a public company domiciled in India and is

incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India to carry out mobile

marketing, social media marketing, advertising, mobile cRM and loyalty campaigns' mobile

music content and ring tones and integrates with other media campaigns and strategies.

The registered office of the company is located at Hindustan Times House, 18-20, Kasturba

Gandhi Marg, New Delhi- 110001.

Information on other related pafty relationships of the company is provided in Note 26 and

27.

The financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March,2024 were approved

for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on May 08' 2024.

2, Material accountang Policies followed by the company

2.1Bas3s of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian

Accounting standards ('Ind AS') specified in the companies (Indian Accounting standards)

Rules, 20i5 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the "accounting

principles generally accepted in India").

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial

statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the

following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

. certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value (refer accounting

policy rega rd ing financial instruments)'

The financiat statemenrs are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the company's

fUnctionaIcurrency.A||amountsdisc|osedInthefinanciaIstatementsandnoteshaVebeen
rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of schedule III, unless otherwlse

stated.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

a) Current versus non- current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-

current ciassification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

. Exoected to be realised or intended to sol i or consumed in normal operating cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. itp"it"O to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. cash or cash equivatent uni"., restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period'

All other assets are classified as non-current'

A liability is current when:
. It is'expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading ,

. It is due to be ,"itl"d *ithin twelve months after the reporting period' or

n{A



HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the ended March 3 2024

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting Period

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the display of advertisement on website and delivery

of content and their realization in cash and cash equivalent. The Company has identifled 12

months as its operating cycle.

b) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective

functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition'

However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average

approximates the actual rate at the date of the transactlon'

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the

functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date'

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the

Compaiy,s monetary ltems it rates different from those at which they were initially recorded

during the year, or reported in previous financia| statements, are recognized as income or as

expenses in the year in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions'

c) Fair value measurement

Thecompanymeasurescertainfinancia|instrumentssuchasinvestmentsatfairVa|ueat
each repofting/ balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

anorder|ytransactionbetweenmarketparticipantsatthemeasurementdate.ThefairVa|ue
measurement is based on thl presumpiion that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer

the liability takes place either:

. In the Principal market for the asset or liability' or
r In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liabilitY

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

The fair value of un urr"i oi a iiability is measured using the assumptions. that market

participantsWouIdusewnenpricingtheassetorIiabi|ity,assumingthatmarketparticipants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by

selling it to another marret paitilipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circu

which sufFicient data are available to measure fair value' maximising th
nd for

observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs' lGurugram



HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the r ended March 31

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

market orices in active markets for identical assets or

for which inputs are inputs other than quoted prices

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted)
liabilities

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques
included within Level l that are
indirectly

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which
liability

inDuts are unobservable inputs for the asset or

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurrlng oasls,

the company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by

,"ar."rring categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measuremant as a whole) at the end of each reporting period'

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the

level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above'

This Note summanses accounting policy for fair value. other fair value related disclosures

are given in the relevant notes :

. -Disclosures 
for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 25)

. Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 25)

. Investments at Fair Value through profit and loss (Note 5A)

. Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 58)

d) Revenue recognition and other income

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is

being made.

Revenue toward obligation amount of

transaction price llocated to gation' The

transaction prlce ed is net of on account

of various discou Company as part of the contract' Invoices are

usually payable within 30-60 Days.

Thecompanyhasconc|udedthatitistheprincipa|ina||ofitsrevenuearrangementssinceit
istheprimaryob|igorina||therevenuearrangementsasithaspricing|atitudeandisa|so
exposed to inventory and credit risks'

Goods and service tax ts not received by the Company on its own account Accordingly, it is

excluded from revenue

Contract asset and unbilled receivables
ContractassetrepresentstheCompany'srighttoconsiderationinexchangeforservicesthat
thecomDanvhastransferredtoacustomerWhenthatrightisconditionedonsomethingother
than the passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash' and only passage of

invoicing, the same is presented as unbilled receivable'

ti
.<-<r\
3',(Tg

ired to do



HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is

earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the
Company is under an obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is

recognised.

Revenue from content

Revenue from content is recognised as and when music and video content is monetlsed during

the month through various publishers (websites). This is done month on month basis

dashboard/reports/log records of publishers/operators etc.

Interest income
Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactly

discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the

financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of

the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the

effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the

contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and

similar options) but does not consider the exPected credit losses. Interest income is included

in other income in the statement of profit and loss'

e) Taxes

Current income tax

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the

period in respect of current tax and deferred tax'

current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in

accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax Iaws used to compute

the amount are those that are enacted or sUbstantively enacted, at the reporting date'

current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside

profitor|oss(eitherinomeorinequity).currenttaxitemsare
recognised in ;orrelation ction either in OCI or directly in equity'

ManJgement periodically en in the tax returns with respect to

situations in which applic subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where aPProPriate.

AppendixCtolndASl2,lncomeTaxesdealingwithaccountingforuncertaintyoverrncome
tax treatments does not have any material impact on financial statements of the company'

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is Provided
and lia bilities and their
date.

considering temporary differences between the tax bases of assets

carrying amounti for financial repolting purposes at the reporting

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences



HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the ended March 3 2f)24

. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or

liabilitv in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,

affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and

associates, when the timing of ihe reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled

and it is piobable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of

unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent

that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

exceDt:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination

and, at thitime of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and feduced

to the exte;t that it is no longer probable th.t sufficient taxable profit will be available to

uiro* urr or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized' Unrecognized deferred tax assets are

re-assessedat each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become

oiofiOt" tnut future taxable p?ofits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered'

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in

tn" v"ul. when the asset is rea|ized or the Iiabi|ity is sett|ed, based on tax rates (and tax |aws)

that have been enacted or substantively enactr d at the reporting date'

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or

loss. Deferred tax items are recogiized in colelation to the underlying transaction either in

OCI or directly in equity'

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if it has a legally

enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax

assets and deierred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority

on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle

current tax |iabiIities and assets on a net basis, or to rea|ise the assets and settle the Iiabilities

simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities

or assets are expected to be settled or recovered'

GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recoqnised net of the amount of goods and service tax pald/ except:

.Whenthetaxincurredonapurchaseofassetsorservicesisnotrecoverab|efromthe
taxation authority, ,n *f iaf''case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of

acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item' as applicable

. wh"n receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to,

Dart of receivables or payables in the balance sheet
the taxation authority is included as



HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met.

Cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs (if any) if capitalization criteria are met
and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Recogn ition:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as

onlv if:
a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item

entity;
and

b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

All other expenses on existing assets, including day-to day- repairs and maintenance

exoenditure and cost of replaciig arts, are c targed to the Statement of Profit and Loss for

the period during which such expenses are incurred'

Depreciation on propefty, plant and equipment is provided on a straight Line Method over its

economic useful lives of the assets as follows:

an asset if, and

will flow to the

Type of asset
Useful lives estimated bY
management (Years)

General plant and machineq J-O

Furnitu re and fixtu res 2-to
Leasehold imProvements amortized over the lease PerioQ

Office equipment 2-5

The Company, based on technical assessment made by the management every year'

O"fre.iates certain plant and machinery over estimated use from

ifrJ usefut life prescribed in Schedule ll to the Companies Act. ieves

that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair over

which the assets are likely to be used.

Property,PlantandEquipmentwhichareadded/disposedoffduringtheyear'depreciationis
provided.onpro.ratabasiswithreferencetotremonthofaddition/de|etion.

Anitemofproperty,p|antandequipmentandanysignificantpartlnitia|Iyre.cognisedis
;;r;.6";J ,pon iirposat or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use

or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference

u"twe"n the neidisposal proceedl and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the

income statement when the asset is derecognised'

Subsequent expenditure can be capitalised on

associated with the expenditure will flow to the
reliably.

The residual values, useful lives and methods

are reviewed at each financial year end and a



HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the ended March 3 2024

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intanjinle assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of

acquiiition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated

intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related

expe;diture is reflectid in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed

for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The amoftization oeriod and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite

useful life are reviewed at least at end of each reporting period' Changes in the expected

useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in

the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and

are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible

assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss'

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment

annua"lly either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite

life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable'

Ii not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are- measured as the

difference between the net disposal pioceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are

recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized'

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on straight line basis using the estimated life

as follows:

SUbseqUentexpenditureiscapita|isedon|ywhen-itincreasesthefutureeconomicbenefits
embodied in the specific assei'to which it relates. nll other expenditure is recognised in profit

or loss as incu rred.

h) Provisions

provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)

as a result of a past event, iiis prouaute ttrat an outflow of resources embodying economic

benefits will be required to,Ltir" the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the

gation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to oe

mpte, under an insurance contract' the reimbursement is recognlsed as a

only when the reimbursement is virtually certain' The expense relating to

nted in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement

If the effect of the time value of money is mat

Dre-tax rate that reflects, when appropria

discounting is used, the increase in the provis

a fina nce cost.

\ 
.---,, ,

Useful Life (in Years

Software Licenses
Website develoPment



HT l{obile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset

may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is

required, the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount, An asset's recoverable

amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (cGU) fair value less costs of

disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless

the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of th_ose from other

assets or groups oi assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its

recoverabl; amount, the asset is considered i rpaired and is written down to its recoverable

amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present

value usingl pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value

of money lnd the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal.

recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified'

an appropriate valuatton model is used, These calculations are corroborated by valuation

multiptes, quoted share prices for publicly traded company's or other available fair value

indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on

which are prepared separately for each of the Com

are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculat
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is cal

flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash fl
most recent budgets/forecasts, the company
using a steady or declining growth rate for su

be justified. In any case, this growth rate does
for the oroducts, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the

market in which the asset is useo.

ImpairmentIossesofcontinuingoperations,inc|udingimpairmentoninventories,are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss'

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whet an indication

that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or ased' If such

indication exists, the Company estimates the assetrs or CGU's e amount' A

is reversed only if there has been a change in the
t's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss

so th the asset

xceed t would h

determined, net of depreciation, had no for the ass

v"iii. sr.r'' r"uersal is recognised in the s the asset

at a revalued amount' ,n *friah case, th rsal is treated as a revaluation increase'

IntangibIeassetswithindefiniteusefu||ivesaretestedforimpairmentannua||yatthecGU
level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may De

impaired.

j) EmPloyee benefits

Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans:

All employee benefits pavable/available-within tY:]"-: T"::h-t-,"^l:"i*:::
.i"*ifi'"J as short-term employee benefits B nefits,such ?t t."]u.t:-:t-i

are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the e

the related service

etc.
lers
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Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The

company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The

Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when

an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service

received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already

paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before

the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-

payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund'

Gratu ity

cratuitv is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit

plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measu rements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in

the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through ocl in

the period in which they occur, Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in

subseq uent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment' and
. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring cost

Interestisca|culatedbyapplyingthediscountratetothenetdefinedbenefitIiabi|ity.

Thecompanyrecognisesthefo||owingchangesinthenetdefinedbenefitob|iqationasan
expense in the Statement of profit and loss:
. service costs comprisinj current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on

curtallments and non-routine settlements; and
o Interest expense

Termination benefits

Terminationbenefitsarepayab|ewhenemp|oymentisterminatedbythecompanybeforethe
normaIretirementdate.Thecompanyrecogn|sesterminationbenefitsattheear|ierofthe
iofio*ing itt"t' (a) when the company can draw the offer of those benefits; and

(b) when the Company recognises costs for that is within the scope of Ind AS 37

and involves the payment o] terminations its falling due more than 12 months

after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value'

Compensated Absences

AccumUIatedIeave,whichisexpectedtobeutiIizedWithinthenextl2months,istreatedas
short term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as

theadditiona|amountthatitexpectstopayasaresu|toftheunusedentit|ementthathas
accumulated at the reporting date'

The Company treats leaves expected to
compensated absences are provided for
unit credit method at the year end A

statement of profit and loss and are not defer
current liability in the balance sheet, since it
settlement for 12 months after the repofting
and contractual right to defer the settlemen
presented as non- current liability.
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k) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial 

-ssets 
lother than trade receivable which is recognised at transaction price as per

Ind AS 115) are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded

at fair valuL through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of

the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For puiposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four

categories:

. Debt instruments at amortised cost

. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or

loss (FWPL)

. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

(FVTocI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A'debt instrument'is measured at the amortised
are met:

cost if both the following conditions

objective is to hold assets fora) The asset is held within a business model whose

collecting contractual cash flows, and

b)contractualtermsoftheassetgiveriseonspecifieddatestocashf|owsthatare
r6f 

"fV 
puy-"ntt of principal and intErest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding'

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised

costusingtheeffectiveinterestrate(EIR)method.Amortisedcostisca|cu|atedby
t"f.rg i"ti, account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are

an iniegrat part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the

;."fla;; toss. rire losses arising from impairment are.recognised in the profit or loss'

ihis category generally applies io trade and other receivables For more information on

receivables, refer to Note 74.

Debt instruments at FVTPL
FWPL is a residual category for debt instruments' Any debt instrument' which does not

meet the criteria for categorization as at amoftized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at

FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument which otherwise

melts amortized cost or FVToiI criteria, as at FWPL. However, such election is allowed

only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency

(reierred to as'accounting mismatch')'

ThenetchangesinfairvaIuearerecognisedinthestatementofprofitandIoss.MutuaI
iuno, o"ut iristruments included within the FwpL category are measured at fair value

with all changes recognlzeo in the Statement of Profit and Loss as "Finance income from

J"it inriru.i nts at iwPL' under the head "other Income"'

a.
a
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Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments

which arL held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination to which Ind-AS 103 applies are classified as at fair value through profit & loss

C.FWPL"). For all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to

present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company

makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on Initial

recog nition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at fair value through other

.ompr"h"nriuu income ("FWOCI"), then all fair value changes on the instrument, 
- 
excludin g

dividends, are recognized in the Cjbt. There is no recycling of the amounts.from OCI to P&1,

even on sale of invistment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss

within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category
changes recognized in the Profit and loss'

Derecognition
n financ'nl asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial

financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i'e' removed
wnen:

are measured at fair value with all

asset or part of a Company of similar
from the ComPanY's balance sheet)

. The rights to rece asset have expired, or

. The Company na to receive cash flows from the asset or has

assumedanob|igdcashf|owsinfu||Withoutmateria|delaytoa
third party under a 'pass-through' arrangemenu and either (a) the C^ompany has

transferred substantialiy iit the riiks and rJwards oi the asset, or (b) the Company has

neither transferred noi retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but

has transferred control of the asset'

Whenthecompanyrightstoreceivecashf|owsfromanassetorhasentered
intoapass-througha|uatesifandtoWhatextentithasreta|nedtherisksand
|."*u|.d, of ownershi ther transferred,"ilJ"i:::::;f"ttH';i'Iy"|:S.ll:J:'t:

the Company continuing involvement' In that
ated liability. The transferred asset and the
at reflects the rights and obligations that the

Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is

."uiri"o-ut the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount

of consiaeratlon that the Company could be required to repay'

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 

-r-o!,- 1'" company appli es 
_ 
expected- credit.loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognitron- "ii.pii.n.'"nt 
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

exDosure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e q loans'

dlbt securlties, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b)Tradereceivab|esoranycontractua|righttoreceivecashoranotherfinancialassetthatresu|t
from transactions that are *ithin irr" scJpe of Ind-AS 115 (referred to as'contractual revenue

receivables' in these financial statements) .;

The Company follows'simplrfied approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance !
ir.
ar,
t

+
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Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amoftised cost using the

. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit

risk, Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime EC15 at each reporting

date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company

determiries that wheiher there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial

recosnition. If credit risk has not increased 
''n"'j$J.lld"ti"-fl?,1:i,t":*t: E:i1J"ri#:if i"i

ent im-proves such that there is no longer a

ognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
cL.

Lifetime EcL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which

results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date'

As a practical expedient, the s a pr trix to d airment loss

utto*an." on portfolio of its t es' Th matrix s historically

observed default rates over th of the vables a for forward -

looking estimates. At every ieporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and

changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyseo'

loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is re€ognized as

in tn" ,aui"rn"ni of profit and losl. This amount is reflected under the head

intheProfitandLoss.ThebaIancesheetpresentationforVariousfinancial
instru ments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised c

receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance,
those assets in the balance sheet' The allowa

asset meets write-off criteria, the Company d

gioti.ut.yi"g amount. For a-ssessing increase in 
-credit 

ris rment loss' the company

combines financial inrvut"nii- on the basis of shared characteristics with the

objective of facilitating un uiuiytit tfit is desi lned to ena nt increases in credit risk

to be identified on a timely basis'

ThecompanydoesnothaVeanypurchasedor'originatedcredit-impaired(PoCI)financia|assets,
i.;;;;";;"i t.sets which are iredit impaired < n purchase/ origination'

Financial liabilities
I niti a I recog n ition a nd measu rement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables' as appropriate All financial ,liabilities 
are

recognised initially at tai|- varue ana] in'the case of and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs

The Company's flnancial liabilities mainly include trade and other payables'

Subseq uent m easu rement

interest method.
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De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same

lender on subsiantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there

is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

l) Leases

A contract is, or contains. a lease
identified asset for a period of time

if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

in exchange for consideration.

Companv as a lessee

The company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset

for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset

measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability adjusted ior any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any

lease incentiue. received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be

incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the

underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured

at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted

for any remeasurement of the iease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the

straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life

of rijht-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the

same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for

impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be

recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss'

The company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are

not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the

interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. Ifthat rate cannot be

readily determined, the company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall

include fixed payments, variable'lease payments, residual value guarantees' exercise price of

a purchase option where the company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising

anoptiontoterminatethe|ease.Afterthecommencementdate,theamountof|easeIiabi|ities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments madeThe

IeaseIiabi|ityissUbseqUent|yremeasuredbyincreasingthecarryingamounttoref|ectinterest
on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and

remeasUringthecarrylngamounttoreflectanyreassessmentorIeasemodtficationsorto
reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The company recognises the a

re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the rightre-measurementofIeaseIiabiIityduetomooll|cat|ondsdlIduJu5L|||glI|lLuL||cIly||L
andstatementofprofltand|ossdependinguponthenatureofmodification.Wheretn
amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduct



HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the r ended ltlarch 31

measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-

measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of

all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset

is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a practical expedient a lessee (the company) has elected, by class of underlying asset, not

to separate lease components from any associated non-lease components, A lessee (the

company) accounts for the lease component and the associated non-lease components as a

single lease comPonent.

Comoanv as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operatlng

lease or a finance lease. The company recognises lease payments received under operating

leases as income On a stralght- line basis over the lease term. In caSe of a finance lease, finance

income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate

of return on the lessor's net investment in the lease'

m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-

term deposits *ith an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consists of cash and

short-term deposits, as defineJabove, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered

an integral part of the Company's cash management'

Cashf|owsfromoperatingactivitiesarebeingpreparedasperthelndirectmethodmentioned
rn lno A> /.

n) Measurement of EBITDA

Thecompanyhase|ectedtopresentearningsbeforeinterest,taX,depreciationandamoltization
(EBITDA) as a separate llne item on the face of the statement d loss' The company

measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing In its measurement'

the Company does not include depreciaiion inO amortization nance costs and tax

expense.

o) contingent Liabilities

Acontingentliabi|ityisapossib|eob|igationthatarises.frompasteventsWhoseexistencewi||
beconfirmedbytheoccurren."o'n-on_o..,rrenceofoneormoreuncertainfutureevents
o"vonJ t|.," conirol of *re companv or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is

"oi 
prooiur"tnat an outflow of r"rou..", will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent

liability also arises in extr"me-lv '-a-.-e-.ui"t 
*h"'" there,is-a l'?!1iY^:1?:^tt-n:1 

be recoqnized

;:::;J"T;;;;; ;;;;;."d' reriabrv rhe companv does not recosnize a contins

but discloses its existence rn the financial statements. .conting 
ent assets are only disc

ql{
3q:2

it is Drobable that the economic benefits will flow to the entlty'
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p) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing:

-the profit attributable to equity holders of the company
-Uy tfre weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,

adjUsted for bonus elements in equity shares issued dUring the year and excluding treasury
shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per

share to take into account:

- The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive

potential eq uity shares, and

- The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding

assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares'

2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requ to make

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported am expenses'

assEts and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertai sumptions

and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material e carrylng

amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods'

The areas involving critical estimates are as below:

Defined benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are

determined using actuarial vlluations. An actuarial valuation involves making various

assumptions that may differ from actual
determination of the discount rate, future
complexities involved in the valuation and its I

highly sensitive to changes in these assumption
date,

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determininq the appropriate

discount rate for plans operated in india, the management considers the interest rates of

governmentbondsincurrenciesconsistentwiththecurrenciesofthepost-emp|oymentbenefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries Those

mortality tables tend to change onli at interval in response to demographic changes' Future

saiary incr"ares and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the

resoective cou ntries

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 24'
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The areas involving critical judgement are as below:

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in

tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of

business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual

agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or
future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and

expense already recorded. The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable

estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of

orevious tax assessments and ditTering interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity

and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide

variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the

Companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant

management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can

be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together

with future tax planning strategies.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 15.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet

cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using

valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from

observable markets where polsible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity

risk, credit risk and uolatitlty. changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the

reported fair value of financial instruments. For more information refer Note 25.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may

be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,

ihu Co.puny estimates the asset's recoverabl amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the

r'ijn"i oiun asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined

foi an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely

independentofthosefromotherassetsorgroupofassets.Wherethecarryingamountofan
urr"l o,- CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to its recoverable amount. in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are

discounted to their present value using a fre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

assessmentsofthetimevaIueofmoneyandtherisksspecifictotheasset.Indetermi
uiiu" t"rr costs of disposal, recent markets transactions are taken into account lf
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used' These calcu

corroborated by valuation muliiples, quoted share prices for publicly trad )d subsidiari

ava ila ble fair value indicators.
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Note 3 : Property, plant and equipment

Plant and
machinerY

Office
Equipments

Total

As at April 1, 2022
Additions during the year

Less : Disposals/ adjustments

As at March 3L, 2|J23

Additions during the year

Less : Dlsposals/ adjustments

As at March 3L, 2|J24

Accumulated Depreciation/ Impairment

As at April 1' 2022

Charge for the year*

Less : Disposals/ adjustments

rounded off to Nil.

a5

39

2

2

40

)

128

43

47

5

38 85

5

42 38 80

a2

39

2 39

1

2

I23
1

43

43 38 81

41 3A 79

1

4

1

4
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Note 4 : Intangible assets
(INR Lakhs)

Particu;ars Total

As at April t, 2022
Additions during the year

Less : Disposals/ adjustments

As at March 31, 2()23
Additions du ring the year

Less : Disposals/ adjustments

As at lr'f arch 3'-,2024

Impairment

Less : Disposals/ adjustments

As at March 31, 2()24

at March 31,2023
rge for the year

115

115

45

45

161

161

115

115

45

45

161

IOl.
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Tra.le Rec€ivabl€s a9€in9 schedule
As on March 31, 2024
Pa.tlculars unbillcd

l) Uidisolted Trade receivables - consrdered oood 42
rl Jnd'spLrpd lrdde Pece vables - which l-ave
ronincant increase n credt nsk

ii i) Uidisp!ted Trade Receivables cr€dit imparred

L) D'sp--ed Trdde Felerlab es-cons de'ed 9ood

'e) Dr\o-red Irade qp-drvdo es w' ch fdvp
iignrficant Increase ln c.edrt nsk

vr) D,)pLled Trade Recervab es - credir 'mpdrted

Not Oue Outstanding for lollowing
l€ss than 6 nonths l-2 Yeats
5 months l vea.

507's

l{ct T6da
52

5

69

As on March 31, 2023

(i) UndrsDlted T.ade receivables - consrdered oood
(D Undisputed Trade Recervables - which have
sionificant Increase in credrt nsk
(ir) Und sputed lrade Receivables _ credrt rmparred

(iv) Drsputed IEde Receivables consrdered good

(v) Dispoted Trade Recervables - whrch have
srgnificant ncrease in credrt rlsk

(vD D sputed Trade Rece vables - credrt,mpai.ed

lLess: -oss allowance tor b.d & doubtful .ece'vables
lNetTrad€ R€@ivabl€

29

29

97 L94
l

5

11 16 - a9
11 16 89

lNote 7B: c55h lnd c h equiv.lents
Aj at AE at

lrlar.h 31, 2024 lil.tch 31, lO23

deposits with onginal maturity of less than three months

35 34
675

t3 
'O9

term deposrts a.e made for varying penods or b€tween one day and three months, dependrng on the rmhediate cash requrrements of the company and earn

at the respedive short-term deposit rates

7c I Other Eank balanes
As at as at

Larch 31, 2024 March 31. 2023

Bank b.lanc.s otherthan (78) tbov. r7 16

L7 15Deposrts rvith onginal maturity of more than three months blt less than 12 montns

8 : Othe. current ass.ts
At st As at

i,hrch 3r, 2024 t{.tth 31, 2023

3

900
806

L,709

2

460
610

1,O72with govemment autnont'es

uD of tlnanciat ass€ts @rrled .t arnorti6€d €o't
at at As at

rlrch 31, 2l'24 r|.rch 31, 2023

rccervables (Note 7a)

and cash eq! valents (Note 7B)

Bank balances (Note 7c)
nnancial assets (Note 5s)

549 317

35 7O9

r7 16
1t

601 1.053

Unbilled Not oue otrtstanding for following Periods from due date
Leis than 6 months 1-2 vea.s 2_3 YeaB More than 3 Years
6 nonths l vear

otal tin..cial a3s€tt carrl.d at.mortis€d ct6t

t' -.t-_/ ' /

\.+ -,/



ft.n F-.fl rarq l& 2o:ra

553,400,000 55,340

E/ rltNl|' rlrr.H t qult .|rr!
cdnF.y hr, ott d..trs o,.autrt strrt |IvnE t r v.|!. oa i*to...fi D.t !h4, E|.n hol.Lr oa qulY sl.t l. dn .a tD fl rEt F lhtL rh. c.dFnt d.d.G rrd e.vs.rl/|dda In

m .i*. nr. o,ira,a gq-.0- by r. go".a aii,rrto.r r -rlcr r! uE .@rwt d ri. sh|rnotd* r'| nE qErn! &mrd G.nra ti.dn!.

ric qrt oathritrlon.t dj. cmo.ny, rh. hdd4 oa.{{tv.lErt rin !. qtrd€d r! tclve lf|nln{ ...b ollh€ comp.iv,.lbr dl.lbrtd oldl p..lHd .natB rlE dldb{dd rlll b'
rrlgdtlon to th. numhr at e{uhy ll|.€ h.ld bv the .ll ddtlE!

3r.4!- . 51q41s..339 s'o4

, rh. +l!' th|d oldl|!.t dt LllnLa ra.tl| giCthV-!

strt rsEd rt'lr|e ttE y..r











tlotar to tlnrnclal ttrt m.ntr fbr tft€ ycrr qd.d fErch 31. 2O2a

ota 16 3 R.vanua fforn opqrdo||. (IxR Llfhr)

s.L d €!!rr!c€
-Sal6 of Dlglt6l servlces

Odrs OF||dng Ewtrua --
- ForfetturE of s€ofity depGlt

4,236 4,676

40

l{otr 17 ! Othcr hcome (I R L!kh.)

, 10

-I
634
2-

18

22
-26

t Il{R less ttrEn 5O,oOO/- has bcen raunded o|l to Nll'

l|otr lE ! Emdoy.. D.iofltr argansa

3

109
4

* tNR less than 50,000/- has be€n rounded olT to Nll.

LotC 19 : Flnrnct G

ota 20 : DaPa€cldon an,d ttnofdzatlo|l o(Faltlc

Depreciation on prop€rty, plant End equipment (Reter Not 3)*
amortization of intanolble assets (Reier Notc 4)*

1

* INR less than 50,000/- has been rounaeo otr to Nll.





]fT llobllG Soludono Llmlt d
ot€. to lln.ncl.l rt*enrantr for |'|a Vaar .ndad t{rrch 31, 2O2a

Notc 22 : outGr ComprCrdElv. lncool.
The disaggregatlon of changes to OCI by each type of resewe in equlty is sholYn below :

Dudng th. y..; €ndcd F.rch 91, 2024
(lllR lrkh6)

Remeasurement of defined benefit Plans (r€fer note 24)*
iai rmfuc* 

- -

* INR less than 50,000/- has been rounded ofr to Nll,

Durlng t||G yG.r .nd€d Harch 31' 2023
(lt{R lrkhs)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (refer note 24)

Tax Impact

2
(1)

2
1)(

otG 23 3 E mlngs pcr sh.ru (lPS)
Basic EpS amounts are calculated by dlvldlng the proflt for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

vyelghted average number of Equlty stlares out*anding durlng the year'

D uted EpS amounts are calotlated by divldlng the proft attrlbutable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of Equity shares outstandlng durtng the year plus the rvelghted average number of Equtty shares that would be issued

on converslon of all the dilutive Potenual Equlty shares into Equlty sha

The followlng ref,ects the income and share data used in the baslc and dlluted EPs comPutatlons:

ProflV(Loss) attrlbutable to equity holders (INR r.akhs )

Number of outstandlng EquW shares for basic and diluted EPS

Errnlngc/(L63) pcr sharc (F!cG vslua R3. lo cach)
Basic & Dlluted EPS (INR)

336 1457)

50,415,889 50,rt15,889

o.67 (o.e1)





to fln nclal ttltant€fltt tor th. ylat drd.d tl.tdr 31, 2o2a

s€nsl vlty analysls above have b€€n d€termined bas€d on a method thEt extrapol€tes the lmpact on defined benetrt gbllgation as a riesult

changes In key assumpdons occurrlng at thc cnd of the repodng pcdod.

tollowlng represents the maturlty proflle of the deflned benef,t plan In future years:

Irld!

duration of the defined benefrt pl€n obtlgatlon ls 9 years (Prevlous ycar-l8 years)

Datlmd Codrlt||don PLn
L.b|3

at the beginQlng qf lhe Year
the

ii'ti-tiss tnan 5O,0OO/- has b€en rounded off to



to tin.n.lal stat€h.nB tor th. v.!. ehded l'la?ch 31, 2024

out betow, is a comparison by class of th€ Grying amounts and fairvalue olthe companles financial instruments, otherthan those with catrying amount3 that are reasonable

(INR
F.lr Yalua me.hr

ty deposit kef€r not€ 5B) 5

46

35-

Hl.r...ny
l.vd

35 Lev€l 2

.ssd! neasu..d !t fair valuc th?ough P.olit and
(FVrPr)
;tment ln equlry instruments and warants - Quoted (refer 6

sA)

in eauiv instruments and warants - Unquoted (refer
sA)

in Mutuar Funds {ref€r note 5A) 392

814 142
li.bllltla. measurld at amonE d cost

deposrt (refe. note 11)

;i;"; "di;;"ry;," o tr,.'L,t+*,.-.t,
tnaed In a curent trans€ction between wrlling parties, otherthan in a forced or liquidation sale

following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fdir values:

in qloted equlty shares are va ued at closlng price of stock on r€cognized stock €xchanqe

fairva|Uesofth€invesimentinUnqUotedeqU|ty|nst.Ument5havebeenestimatedUsinEaDis.oUntedcas
nqradeintheinv€steecompany'ThevatUat|onr€oUiresman.qementtomakecea|nassUmpt|onsabo

, The probabitities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are us€d in managemenfs esnmate of farr value for lhese unquoted 
'nvestments

io ouoied mutual funds being valued at Net Asset value

xot. 26: Related pafi transactions

li3t of Rcl.t.d Parties.nd RelationshiDs:-

having dlr€ct or indi.ect conkol over the comPany Earthston€ Holding (Two) Private Limited (Ultimate controlling Paltv is the P'omot€r Group)

The Hindustan Times Limitedt

HT Digital str€ams Umited
HT Music and Ente(ainment Company Limited

subsidraries (with whom transadions have occurf€d

The Hindustan Times Limtted (HTL) does not hotd any direct investment in the company, However, BTL',s subsidiary HT Media Limited holds shares In the companv

Transactions with r.lat.d Parti€3
Note 27

T.rms and conditions oatranedlons with rel.t.d p€rti.s
s.tes to and purchases froh retat€d panies are made on terms equivalent to those that pr€vail in arm's lenqth transadlons outstandrng ba16nces at the vear_end are !nsecured

interest free and settlement occurs in cash





tlot s to tinrnclal st.t.menk for the Year .ndcd .rch 31, 2024

| 2a: Fln.nclal rlsk manascmcnt obicdlv.. .nd Dolicies
Company.s principat Rnanciat tiabitities comDrise trade and other payables. The maln purpose of these Rnancial liabilltles is to finance the Companv's oPerations

ortncioat financiat assets inctude investments, loans given, Lrade and other recelvables, and cash and cash equlvaients that derive directly from l$ operarlons

rl3k
rtsk is the risk thar rhe fair vatue of future cash ftows of a financiat instrument will fluctuBte because of chang€s in market phces lYarket risk comprises lhree tvpes

interest rate risk, currency dsk and equi!y Prlce rlsk

sensitivity analys€s in the followinq sections relate to the positlon as at t'4arch 31, 2024 and l'1arch 31. 2023'

anatysis exctude the impa€t of movements In market variables on: the carryinq valu€s of qratuitv and Drovislons,

sensitivity of th€ retevanr proRt and toss item is the eftect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financlal

at l"larch 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Inter..t rrtc rlsk
:rc<r dt€ risk is the risk that the tair vatue or future cish flows of a Rnancial instrument will flrictuate be€ause of changes In market interest rates The companY has

borowtngs which are caried at amoii2ed cost. rhey are therefore not subject to Interest rate risk as denned in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amounr nor

cash flows wiLl fluduate because of a change In market interest rates.

in USD rrte

' INR less than 50,000/- has been rounded off to Nil

EquiW/ptct€rence Drice risk
company|nvestsin|istedandnonr|st€deqUity/preferen€e5ecUritieswhicharesu5ceptibletomarketPnce.nsk.arl5..is,ji9-^,l-.:T^"]:l:..x'j

fi';:c;;; i;;;;;r;"; ."""r;"1n"-aq;ii;rerere^ce price risk lhroleh diversfca$on and by pracine rimits on individuar and totar equitv/prererence ins

on the equiry/prererence por$otio are subm'ne; io the com;any s senior managenent on a regular basis The companv's Investment committee reviews and

equity/pref erence investment decisions-

risk ls the risk that €ounterpady wi nor mee( tts obtigalions under a financial lnsvument or customer €ontract, eadinq to a financial oss The company is erposeo

;l:i;ol.' ;Uil;;liii,*'io.'i",ii, ii.a" rec;ivabres) and rrom its financine activities, ,ncud,ne depos,ts wrth banks and Rnancia rnstitutrons and

(ii) Forelsn cu.rcncy risk
i"."ien .ur."*V ri"f i. rhe risk tha! the fatr va !e or furure cash fows of an exposure will fluctuate because of chang€s ln foreign exchange rates. The companv's exposure

the risk of changes in roreign exchange rares retates prtmariry to the Company s operatlng actlvlties (when revenue or erpense is d€nominaled in a foreiqn currencY)

rign cura.ncv sensitlvitv
fo owing tabtes demonsLrate the sensitiviry to a r€asonably possible change in exchange rat€s, wilh all other variables held constant. The impad on lhe companv's

tax i5 due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities

E tact qr profh De{or. tar
(r R Lalrhs)



to flnanclal atrtcm.nts for th€ year ended March 31, 2024

Not. 29 : Slehent inforffitlon

Ih€company,soperationscompns€oion|yonese9menti.e'..Rende.iogofDi9|
onese9mentandaccording|ymakedec|sionaboU!theresouresa||ocation.Inviewo'thesame,s€Parat€segmentinfomationi5not.eqUirdtobe9'venasp
108 on "Operating Se9m€nls"

about malor customers:
is cedain custome(s) which represent lovo or more ot the Company's total revenue with total amounting to INR 4,102 L?khs and INR 4,344 bkhs for the yea. €nded M.rch 31,

March 31, 2023.espectively.

c 30: C.plt l m.nlgchcnt
rhe p!.pose of the Company s cipitat man.gement, caprtar indudes issued eqoity capital. share premium and all other equity eseNes, The pnmary objective of the Companv s

is to maximize the shareholder value.

company h6nages its capitat structure and makes adlustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the r€quiremenLs of the financial covenants. To maintain or adlust

at structure, the company may adjus! rhe dividend payment to shareholders, retum c.pital to shareholders or issue new shars. The company monitors capital using a gearing ri

is net debt divided by total caDital and net debt The company includes within net debt, interest beanng loans and borowinqs aFd interest accru€d on borrowrngs

(lt{R Lakhs)
, Mar€h 31,2024 Mrrch 31, 2023
(refer Note 1I) 814 742

Ebt a14 742
otal equity (refer Note 9 & ro) 1 036 700

cspitrl cmployed 1,850 L'442

r.tfo 44alo 5Lor'o

changes wer€ made in the objectives, poticies or processes fo. managrng capital dtlrin9 the yeaE ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Note 31: 8..€d on the Intorm.tion av.itabte with the company, details ofdu€s to Ml.ro.nd shall Ent€tPrises a3 defined under the MsllEo ad' 2006:
(I{R L.kh5)

March 31, 2024 Mar.h 3l' 2023

due thereon at the end of the accounting year

amount of inte.est paid by the buYer in terms of section
16, of th€ MSi4EO Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the

hade to the supplier beyond the appointed day
each accounting y€ar

amount of interest due and payable forthe period for
In making payment (*hrch have been pa'd but beyond

appointed day dunng the year) but without adding the
specified under MSMED Act, 2006,

amount of interest accrued and Emainhg unpa'd at the
of th€ accounting year

amo!nt of flrther interest remaining due and payable
in the succeeding y€ars, untrlsuch date when the

dues as above arc actuallv Dard to the small
for th€ oumose of disallowance as a deductible

under Sect'on 2l of MST4ED Act, 2005,

INR less than 50,000/. has been .oLrded off to Nrl

32: S.heme of !mrlgamation

v,,) with HT Medra Limited (HTML) ( the company') was not approv€d by the Hon'ble National Company Law rnblnal (NCLI), New Delhi sench The Company filed an appeal

Hon'ble National company Law appelate Tnblnal (NCLAT) and NCLAI vrde its order dated March L2,2024 has set aside the order passed by NCLT and drrected NCLT to revrsrt

aDDtrcatron of second motron. The Cohpany has frled an application seekrng directions from NCLT for listing and drsposal of the second mohon aPplicaion

Note 33: st.nd.rds issu€d but not ettectiv€



lmpalrfl€rfi analyCa ls p€riofEd !t cdr lEFrdng data orr am lrdlvldual bad3lbr mdor cll€nts. The msxl|Irum ax9cut! to aedlt r|3k at tha tlPoaung data L tha
d eldr d6s ot lln nct.l rss.ts drd6ed In ot 7A.nd iloE 5a Thc Cdnp.ny dc not hold cdl.ter.l 6 ..arrlty.

Clanparr €vatuatc! tfc concertEtldr d dst vdth E+ad b tra(h r€cdvauca lnd actttact aa low, !5 lts G||5tdne aa€ loaatad lh acva-al lui!dlc!f3 and In4!trlaa

to ||nr|dl .t ttrrs r fa tn. rt r cr|dd lhr lr. 2o2a

racdvrbl€a Jd othaa trnl|cl.l taalt3

In l.rgely Indcpandqt lndftcts.

Ll k|'r.nb rd dr dry||t
rlst fur balenaEs uldr b€nl(l lnd tlntndd lrr3bhrEoaE Ls manalFd by tha Cornpanli's trlasury deart|Eit In e<caadanar wlth the Cornpant,.3 lollcy, ln^!atnt3
I funds .1€ m.d. s p.t gutddtn a lnd withln llmlE .pproi/rd !t Bor.d d Ol.ldotrt. lord d Dl.t b.5/ anaeEn€nt .€al.ws lnd update guldclln.s, Um. b Une .3 |
mcnt. The gutdettn€ rE sa b dhlmlte tha c ccnffid| oa drh snd therdor! ltl€5te inrrdll lois ftroogh countcrpartyb potEntal ftllu|! to makc Payn€nts'

CoanDanv mo.ttort tB tls|( of a $dt{c of funda lCrn a llquldltY n|cdlllr sn.

dL Ud rnnft- d|. mfrdry FoaL at tia GdnFrt'. fi.odJ [r|l]It- D-d oi c!|b.cbld l5dl.!.rnLd prytrd t



to llnancl.l .l.l.m.nts tot lt. yot end.d r.tct lt, 2o2la

34 : St tutory ldonirrtlon
No pc*ding has been Infiat d or pendtng ag.trlst the .ompany for hol.lhg any b€n.hi prcperty under the Ben.mr Transactlons (Prchlbition) Act, 1988 (45 of 196S) and rul.s

Th. company has not b€en declared .s wllful d€flult€r bv any blnk d llnanclll lnstltuuon or other l€ntter'

Th. cornDanv has not €ntered Into 6ny tnnsacflons wlth companles struck ofi und€r se.non 248 ofthe companlE act, 2013 or sectlon 560 of companl€s Ad, 1956

Th6e are no trans.ction whkn has been surrendered or dlsclGed as Income dudng the year ln the tar assessm€nts underthe Inrcm. Tax Act, 1961

There are no charges or sltlsfachon yet to be reglster.d with Roc beyond tn. staMory perlod'

rh€re are no funds which hav€ be€n sdvlned or tolned or invlsted {eith.r from bonowed tunds or share prernlum or any oths sourccs d klnd of tunds) w the company to or in

,, oi"*i "i.ntitr.., 
i""roing rorelgn enfltiB (.rntermediarrs"), with ih€ undeGtanding, whether r.co..l€d in wrlthg or otherwlt€, thlt the Intermedl.ry shell:

drr€cdy or Indtr€cfly tend or invest in other peMns or entities ld€ntlfied In any mannd wnabo.ver ("Ultim.te Eeneficl.nes") bv or on behatf of the comP'nv or

provlde ahy gu.rante.. s.€unty or th. llke to or on b€naf or the ulumat Benetrciari's'

There are no tnds whtch hav€ b€€n recetved Dy rhe co.npany i'od any p.rsons or .nmies, inctoding fo..tgn entittes ("Fundlng Porties'), slth th. undeEtandhq, wheLh.r rcdd€d

o. otheslse, thtt the ComP.nY shall:

15 : Coodnoent ll.blllucl

p.ot€.t of INR 5.06 |arhs (Previous Year Nil).

@ mlnagement asses.rndrt and cuRrn status of the above m.n6, the man.gement ts @nfid.n! that no prcvislon G r.{uired in the fn'ncral stat€ments as on t{arcn 3r' 2024

) dlrecflv or indtre d or inv.st In orher p€rsons or.ntiti€s id.ntifed h any manner wnatsocver ("ultim.te Beneficl.riesl by or on bchalfofth. Fundlns Partv o'

i p."ia! .nv gu" srity or the like from or on behalt of the Ultimste Oeneficlaries

riii)TheGloup(.sp€rtheProvB|onsofthecoreInv6tmentcomP.nies(Res.rveBank)D|rectIons,2o16)doesno!havemol.thanon.cIc(Wh|ch|5notrequ|.edtober
bchg systdnlcslly Imporlant clc ).

hr agtlntt the ConPlny not..knowlcdg.d !' d'brr
In respect of incom. tax demand under dtspute tNR 137 Lakhs (pr€vious year t37 LrtlE) ag€hst rhe same rhe company has pald tax undcr Prot6t of INR 18 lakhs (previds ycar l8 lak

s.diet.Y.Uthor|t|c5hav"..t,.a"aoiuon"ro.'inJii...irrriii.eer"ih"rna"



Ratlos

ota I Debv Total Equity)
Debt = D€bt conprises ofcurent bor.o$ings (includhq

naturitles ol long term bo.rowings), non_curent
and inter€st accrued on borowings.

tunover.atio (trmes)

or soods sold /averaqe Inventory)
= @st of natenab consuFed + Changes m inventones

finished 9ood5, work-ln-proqress and stock'in_trade

recervables turnov€r ratio (in tlmes)

frcm oper.nons /averag€ trade receNabl6)

Davabls lodove. ratlo (in tims)
ot servKes rendered + oth€rexpenses)r / Average trade

allowance for doub$ul debLs and .dvancs and loss

buy back ot equity shares

capital turnover ratio 0n tines)

Revenue rrom operatlons/ workng capital)

No 098113

Equty = Shd rcholdeE' Equity

sflice coverage ratio (in times)

i e EBTTDA - Oepr.cra0on and amortization erpensel
payable within on€ year + Inteet on debt)

Aftd Tat I PAT]/AVe169e shareholder equrtv)

Varlrtlon, R.m.rtr
-28olo f,tainly curent laabilities have Indeased bv 77vo and

C!rent Assets have increased bv 27% in the cuiient
year as compared to the prevroos vear'

-26010 Harnly debt has ncreased bv 100/o and shareholdeis
eq!ity hds Increased bv 48olo in the current vear as

compared to the prevols Year

-140l. Mainlv EBIT has decreased by 160,6 in th€ curent vear
as compared to the p.4ious year.

-179% l'4ainlv PAT has increased bv 17490 in the corrent vear
5s compared to the prev'ous vear'

-12olo Mahly due to decreas€ In reve.ue lrom operanon by

10% in tne current vear as compared to the previous

.182% Marnly PAT has ifcreased by 174% and decreased In

totallncome by 10% in th. currentveir as compared
to th€ Previous Year'

-35% MainlY EBIT has decreared bv 1690 and caprtal

employed has mdeased bv 28olo In the curr€nt vear as

comPared to the prev|ols Year'

-311% Mahly averaqe investment has hcreased bv 230'6 and

rncom€ on inv€stnents h3s Increased bv l59o'G in the

cudentYear as compared to the prevous year'

assets / Cunent liabi!ities)

..ch 31, 2024 r.aarch 31, 2023
243175

o,79

979

4,25

3.67

604

11 10

4.22

377

37,SS'h

proriv(lo5t afrer tax / rotallncome)

On CapitalEmployed (%)

Before Interest and Tat (ESrD / CaplalEmploved)

from fired depositlFVTP! of equitv InstruFenG and
; and preference secunties/ Average balance of Fxed

I Equity inst.uments and waiiants and preferen.e

per our reporl of even date attached

EsRandAs3o.lates

Fi.m regBvation Nlrmber: 128901w)

HI
on behalf of the Board

(DIN:0871r910)

flcer

D.tGr taay oa, 2024


